

# City of Burleson Debt Management Policy

~~July 10, 2023~~

June 16, 2025

## Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to establish parameters and provide guidance governing the issuance, management, continuous evaluation of and reporting on all debt obligations issued by the City, and to provide for the preparation and implementation necessary to ensure compliance and conformity with this policy.

A debt management policy:

- Enhances the quality of decisions by providing transparency of the process.
- ~~Promotes~~Promote consistency and continuity in decision making.
- Contributes to fiscal sustainability.
- Identifies objectives for staff to implement.
- Demonstrates a commitment to longer term financial planning objectives.
- Improves rating agencies review process.

The City of Burleson recognizes that the foundation of any well-managed debt program is a comprehensive debt management and post issuance policy outlining the parameters for issuing new debt and managing the existing debt portfolio; identifying the types and amounts of permissible debt; providing guidance to decision makers regarding the purposes for which debt may be issued; and verifying that the IRS regulations regarding post issuance compliance are met to preserve the tax-exempt status of the City's bonds.

Adherence to a debt management policy helps ensure that the City maintains the current or an improved bond rating in order to minimize borrowing costs and preserve access to credit.

## Policy Statement

Under the governance and guidance of Federal and State laws and the City's Charter, ordinances, and resolutions the City may periodically enter into debt obligations to finance the construction or acquisition of infrastructure and other assets; or to refinance existing debt for the purpose of meeting its governmental obligations to its residents. It is the City's objective to ensure that such debt obligations are issued and administered in such fashion as to obtain the best long term financial advantage ~~to~~for the City and its residents, while making every effort to maintain and improve the City's bond ratings.

This Policy applies to all debt instruments issued by the City regardless of the funding source. Funding sources can be derived from, and debt secured by ad valorem taxes, general City revenues, enterprise fund revenues or any other identifiable source of revenue that may be identified for appropriate pledging for bonded indebtedness.

### **General Debt Governing Policies**

The City establishes the following policies on the issuance and management of debt:

- The City will not issue debt obligations or use debt proceeds to finance current operations or normal maintenance.
- Debt financing includes general obligation bonds, certificates of obligation, revenue bonds, lease/purchase agreements and other obligations permitted to be issued under Texas law.
- The City shall review its outstanding debt annually for the purpose of determining if the financial marketplace will afford the City the opportunity to refund an issue and lessen its debt service cost. As a general rule, the present values savings of a particular refunding should exceed three and one-half percent (3.5%) of the refunded maturities, unless a restructuring or bond covenant revision is necessary in order to facilitate the ability to provide services or issue additional debt in accordance with the established debt policies.

- The City will utilize debt obligations only for acquisition, construction, reconstruction or renovation of capital improvement public infrastructure projects, and capital equipment that cannot be funded from current revenue sources or in such cases where it is more equitable for the project to be financed over its useful life or a period of not to exceed its useful life.
- The City will measure the impact of debt service requirements of outstanding and proposed debt obligations on a single year, five, and twenty-year periods. This analysis will consider debt service maturities and payment patterns as well as the City's commitment to cash fund capital projects.
- The City will seek advice and the services of a Financial Advisor in performing the bond issuance process. The City will also seek the advice of Bond Counsel as to the legality and tax-exempt status of any obligations.
- The bond proceeds will be invested in accordance with the City's investment policy. Interest ~~earnings~~earnings received on the investment of bond proceeds shall be ~~used~~used to assist in paying the cost associated with the capital project or be used toward the repayment of debt. The City is committed to continuing disclosure of financial and pertinent credit information relevant to the City's outstanding securities and will abide by the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or other ~~law~~laws, as applicable.
- The City ~~will~~may utilize a reimbursement resolution approved by the City Council to begin working on capital projects prior to issuing debt. In general, reimbursements are made no later than 18 months after the later ~~of the~~ date of the original expenditure is made or the date the project is placed in service, but in no event more than 3 years after the original expenditure is paid.

## **STRUCTURE OF DEBT**

Debt service shall be structured to the greatest extent possible to:

1. Target projected cash flows and pledged revenues;
2. Minimize the impact on future tax levies;
3. Target a consistent and as rapid as feasible payment of principal;
4. Maintain a level overall annual debt service payment structure; and
5. Target the equal or the lesser of the useful life of the asset being financed.

## **FIXED INTEREST VERSUS VARIABLE INTEREST**

The City generally issues fixed rate bonds primarily to protect the City against interest rate risk. The City has the option to issue variable rate bonds if market conditions warrant and the Council approves it.

## **METHODS OF SALE**

### **A. Competitive Sale**

In a competitive sale, bonds are awarded in a sealed bid sale to an underwriter or syndicate of underwriters that provides the lowest True Interest Cost (TIC) bid. TIC is defined as the rate, which will discount the aggregate amount of debt service payable over the life of the bond issue to its present value on the date of delivery. It is customary for bids to be submitted electronically through a secure website.

### **B. Negotiated Sale**

In a negotiated sale, the City chooses an underwriter or underwriting syndicate that is interested in reoffering a particular series of bonds to investors. The terms of the sale, including the size of the underwriter's discount, date of sale, and other factors, are negotiated between the two parties. Although the method of sale is termed negotiated, individual components of the sale may be competitively bid. The components are subject to a market analysis and reviewed prior to recommendation by staff. Negotiated sales are more advantageous when flexibility in the sale date is needed or when less conventional bond structures are being sold. Negotiated sales are also often used when the issue is particularly

large or if the sale of the debt issuance would be perceived to be more successful with pre-marketing efforts.

### **C. Private Placement**

A private placement is a negotiated sale of debt securities to a limited number of selected investors including financial institutions, government agencies, or authorities. The City may engage a placement agent to identify likely investors if deemed necessary. A private placement may be beneficial when the issue size is small, when the security of the bonds is somewhat weaker, or when a governmental lending agency or authority can provide beneficial interest rates or terms compared to financing in the public market.

The City's debt obligations may be sold by competitive sale, negotiated sale or private placement methods. The selected method of sale depends upon the option which is expected to result in the lowest cost and most favorable terms to the City given the financial structure used, market conditions, and prior experience. When considering the method of sale, the City Council may consider the following issues:

1. Financial conditions;
2. Market conditions;
3. Transaction-specific conditions;
4. City-related conditions;
5. Risks associated with each method;
6. Complexity of the Issue – Municipal securities with complex security features require greater marketing and buyer education efforts on the part of the underwriter, to improve the investors' willingness to purchase;
7. Volatility of Bond Yields – If municipal markets are subject to abrupt changes in interest rates, there may be a need to have some flexibility in the timing of the sale to take advantage of positive market changes or to delay a sale in the face of negative market changes;
8. Familiarity of Underwriters with the City's Credit Quality – If underwriters are familiar with the City's credit quality, a lower (TIC) may be achieved. Awareness of the credit quality of the City has a direct impact on the TIC an underwriter will bid on an issue. Therefore, where additional information in

the form of pre-sale marketing benefits the interest rate, a negotiated sale may be recommended. The City strives to maintain an excellent bond rating. As a result, the Municipal Bond Market is generally familiar with the City's credit quality; and

9. Size of the Issue – The City may choose to offer sizable issues as negotiated sales so that pre-marketing and buyer education efforts may be done to more effectively promote the bond sale.

## **RATINGS**

Adherence to a debt management policy helps ensure that the City maintains the current or an improved bond rating in order to minimize borrowing costs and preserve access to credit. Toward that end, the City will take the following steps.

1. Strive to maintain good relationships with bond rating agencies as well as disclose financial reports and information to these agencies and to the public.
2. Obtain a rating from at least one nationally recognized bond-rating agency on all issues being sold in the public market.
3. Make timely disclosure of annual financial information or other requested information to the rating agencies.

## **CONTINUING DISCLOSURE**

The City will take all appropriate steps to comply with federal securities laws, including, but not limited to, Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Rule 15c2 -12 the ("Rule"). The City will make annual and event disclosure filings to the MSRB via EMMA as required by the Rule and its continuing disclosure undertakings.

## **SELECTION OF FINANCIAL ADVISOR**

The City shall retain an independent financial advisor for advice on the structuring of new debt, financial analysis of various options, including refunding

opportunities, the rating review process, the marketing and marketability of City debt obligations, issuance and post-issuance services, the preparation of offering documents (each, an "Official Statement") and other services, as necessary. The City will seek the advice of the financial advisor on an ongoing basis. The financial advisor will perform other services as defined by the agreement approved by the City Council. The financial advisor will not bid on nor underwrite any City debt issues in accordance with MSRB rules.

### **SELECTION OF BOND COUNSEL**

The City shall retain bond counsel for legal and procedural advice on all debt issues. Bond counsel shall advise the City Council on all matters pertaining to its bond ordinance(s) and /or resolution(s). No action shall be taken with respect to any obligation until a written instrument (e.g., Certificate Ordinance or other legal instrument) has been prepared by the bond attorneys certifying the legality of the proposal. The bond attorneys shall prepare all ordinances and other legal instruments required for the execution and sale of any bonds issued which shall then be reviewed by the City Attorney and the Director of Finance. The City will also seek the advice of bond counsel on all other types of debt and on any other questions involving state law and federal tax or arbitrage law. Special counsel may be retained to protect the City's interest in complex negotiations.

### **Debt Limit**

- The maximum combined tax rate of the City is \$2.50 per \$100 valuation under State law. Administratively solely for the purpose of approving as **valorem debt**, the Attorney General will permit an allocation of \$1.50 of the \$2.50 maximum tax rate for all ad valorem tax supported debt service, as calculated at the time of issuance.
- The State of Texas does not prescribe a legal debt limit on the amount of outstanding revenue bonds.

- The City of Burleson's charter does not provide a debt limit lower than the \$2.50 maximum tax rate under State law.

## Specific Debt Ratios and Measurements

This section establishes target debt ratios and measurements for the City. As the City periodically addresses its ongoing needs, the City Manager and the City Council must ensure that future elected officials will have the flexibility to meet the capital needs of the City. This policy establishes targets which should provide future flexibility.

~~**Purpose of Issuance**—The City will issue debt obligations for acquiring, constructing, reconstructing or renovating Capital Improvements or for refinancing existing debt obligations. Projects must be designated as public purpose projects by the City Council prior funding~~

~~**Maximum Maturity**—All debt obligations shall have a maximum maturity of the earlier of,~~

- ~~• The estimate useful life of the Capital Improvements being financed;~~
- ~~• Or twenty years except for special purpose debt as determined by the City Council which may be finance for periods consistent with the purpose of the debt;~~
- ~~• Or debt issued to refinance outstanding debt obligations, the final maturity of the debt obligations being refinanced, unless the Financial Advisor recommends a longer term.~~

**Outstanding Debt** – The Finance Director will monitor and report the outstanding debt to the City Council at least annually. The Finance Director is responsible for monitoring the maturities and terms and conditions of all obligations to ensure compliance.



**Future debt** – Debt will be structured by reviewing the 5-year CIP plan, growth of the City, and level or declining debt service payments over the life of existing bonds.

**Self-Supporting Debt** – Bonds backed with the ~~general obligation~~ property tax pledge often have lower interest rates than revenue bonds. The City may use its ~~general obligation~~ property tax pledge with self-supporting debt when the population served by the self-supporting bond projects ~~overlap~~ overlaps or significantly are the same as the property tax base of the ~~city~~ City. The City Council and management are committed to maintaining rates and fees structures and a revenue stream of revenue supported debt at levels that will not require a subsidy from the City's General Fund.

**Net Debt Per Capita** – is the amount of debt outstanding for each citizen of a jurisdiction. Net direct debt is the sum of all general obligation bonds and notes outstanding less ~~the fiscal year-end balance of the debt service fund less~~ any self-supporting obligations ~~excluding~~, overlapping debt, and revenue debt. The City **shall strive** to maintain the current Net Debt per Capita at or below \$3,000.

**Net Debt to Assessed Value** – Assessed valuation shows the fiscal capacity of the tax base. The City **shall strive** to maintain a ratio of Net Debt to Assessed Value of properties in the City at or below three percent (3%)

**Debt Service Tax Rate** – The City will target a debt service tax rate the makes up 40% or less of the City's total property tax rate.

**Bond Covenants and Laws** – The City shall comply with all covenants and requirements of its bond ordinances, the State and Federal laws authorizing and governing the issuance and administration of debt obligations.

## **Debt Committee**

The Finance Committee shall function as the City's designated Debt Committee to oversee the implementation of debt strategies. The Committee shall meet at least twice a year or as requested by the City Manager and/or Finance Director.